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CAUSE NO. 2018-67325
MARIA GALVEZ, § IN THE DISTRICT COURT
§
Plaintiff, §
§
v. § 189th JUDICIAL DISTRICT
§
CITY OF KATY, CHARLES A. § %ﬁ
“CHUCK” BRAWNER, and RUSSELL ~ § @
WILSON § HARRIS COUN@\TEXAS
N
Defendants. )
N

NS
PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED PETITION AND R@?ST FOR DISCLOSURE
Y]

S

TO THE HONORABLE DISTRICT COURT JUDGE@@

NOW COMES Plaintiff, Maria Galvez, a les this, her First Amended Petition and

Request for Disclosure, and respectfully show@ following:

o
I
(SUMMARY

S

Plaintiff, Maria Galvez, wa&%loyed by the City of Katy as the Emergency Management
Coordinator. Defendants acted@germinate her employment and did so by maliciously using the
most deplorable means to@so. While having placed Ms. Galvez on paid administrative leave,
with no action for neﬁr@wo months related to the allegations used as the basis for placing Ms.
Galvez on leave, ndants intruded on her seclusion, violated her Fourth Amendment rights to
be free fron@asonable search and seizure, and violated the Stored Communications Act by
accessing and reading her personal, Facebook messenger messages. It was not until Defendants
were armed with details regarding matters related to her private life, personal communications
with family and friends, did Defendants take action. First, Defendants issued Ms. Galvez another

write-up. Then, Defendants terminated Ms. Galvez’s employment. Finally, when Ms. Galvez
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exercised her right to appeal the termination, the majority of the messages selected by Defendants
for submission to the City Council during the “hearing” had nothing to do with Ms. Galvez’s
employment or the decision the Council was tasked with making; there was clear motive behind
Defendants’ deliberate selection of messages that where extremely personal in nature. Defendants

actions were done with malice and were calculated to severely offended, hu% ate, and cause

outrage. @

I @%

. A
DISCOVERY CONTROL PLAN v\%

@

1. Plaintiff intends that this suit be governed by discover@rol level two.

2. Plaintiff affirmatively pleads that this suit is not goveried by the expedited actions process
@
in Texas Rule of Civil Procedure 169 because @nﬁff seeks relief in excess of $100,000.

)
3. Specifically, Plaintiff seeks monetary rel@er $200,000 but not more than $1,000,000.

@)
é\nl.

PARTIES
NS

4. Plaintiff Maria Galvez is a \Vidual who resides in Waller County, Texas.

5. Defendant City of Katy%a municipality in Harris County, Texas. City of Katy may be

served with service of pro@@)y serving its mayor, Charles A. “Chuck” Brawner at 901 Avenue

)

C, Katy, Texas 77493, \@\

6. Defendant@rles A. “Chuck” Brawner is an individual who resides in Waller County,
O

Texas. Brawhermay be served with service of process at 901 Avenue C, Katy, Texas 77493 or

1122 Fern Ln., Katy, Texas 77493, or wherever he may be found.

7. Defendant Russell Wilson is an individual who resides in Waller County, Texas. Wilson

may be served with service of process at 1417 Avenue D, Katy, Texas 77493, or 6703 Patricia Ln.,

Katy, Texas 77493, or wherever he may be found.
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Iv.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

8. Jurisdiction is proper because the amount in controversy exceeds the minimum
jurisdictional limits of this Court.

0. Venue is proper in Harris County, Texas, pursuant to Section 15.002(a)-(b) of the Texas
Civil Practice and Remedies Code because a substantial part of the events orc&@ksions giving rise

)
to the claim occurred in Harris County.

\Y%

FACTS @@
10.  Ms. Galvez is a lifelong resident of Katy. . @}

N
11.  Ms. Galvez began working for the City of Katy @&lunteer with the Ladies Auxiliary in
2002 before becoming a part-time EMT in 2004. \@
12. Over the years, she held full-time empl %t with Katy, with promotions to the following
positions: paramedic, Hazard Mitigation (ogrdinator and Compliance Officer, and Captain of
Compliance and Assistant Emergenc @@nager.
13.  In 2013, under the restruc@lg plan of Interim Fire Chief Rufus Summers, Ms. Galvez
was instructed to devote her ss solely to the position of Assistant Emergency Manager before
being promoted to Eme%@ Management Coordinator in 2014.
14.  Ms. Galvez J@@Vays given her best efforts to the City of Katy.
15. Unfonu@@ly, following the hiring of Fire Chief Russell Wilson in or around May 2016,
Ms. Galvez @ subjected to a hostile work environment.

16. On or about September 11, 2017, Ms. Galvez filed a complaint with the City of Katy’s

human resources department against Chief Wilson.
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17.  Following Ms. Galvez’s complaint, on or about January 23, 2018, Mayor Charles “Chuck”
Brawner, placed Ms. Galvez on an unjustified paid administrative leave.

18.  Mayor Brawner was falsely alleging that Ms. Galvez had committed timesheet fraud during
Hurricane Harvey.

19. At the time of her suspension, Ms. Galvez was informed that the inves@%tion regarding

@

the matters related to this disciplinary action would be conducted by a third-party, an “outside

agency.” @

City of Katy
OFFICE OF THE MAYOR @

\ oJ
MARIA GALVEZ

20.  However, this, @ all a farce. The City of Katy never intended an investigation by an

outside agé@ and they knew there was not a legitimate basis for her termination based on

O
the f@egaﬁons.

21.  Infact, a subsequent request for disclosure of public records indicates that no payment was

ever made to an independent third-party to conduct such an investigation.
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w0 Xfbaity Connect Reqest for Informaticn- City of Katy Printoet

Akilah Mance <amance@olsonlip.com> oo

Request for Information- City of Katy

To Maria Galvez <kimedic484@comcastnet> Copy Heather Cain <hcainacityotidyc: “Regarding the Notice of Complaint and Administrative Leave dated 1/22/18 from Mayor Brawner to

Art Pertile <apertile@olsoniip.com> Maria Galvez

Attached please find the ments you requested pursuant to yhu u 1) Any and all documentation periaining to the outside agency investigation as stated in this letter.

on 5/14/18. Addi y, the fc ing is being sent to the AG for 2) th d .
the termination and/ or resignation letters or any related documentation regar: 2) he OulSide agency name
individuals. By law, the AG has up 10 45 business days from the receipt o

the
stig nl fraud
rimion teties. “The City"s beief 1s atached for your records. 3) the investigator name Ihulwmim ted the inves luuuun of ulleged Ilme ca }

an

For clarification regarding your requests relating to the i

igative agenc’ T T vy or
letter to you on 1/22/18, the City does provide the f¢ infc

3

Your Request dated S23 he City doe 't have a3 . ) wrds 1o t )
“Regarding the Notice of Complaint and Administrative Leave dated 1/22/18 from L W LAY GOES NOL BAVe y responsive records o CQUN
Maria Galvez 4

1) Any and all documentation pertaining to the outside agency investigation as stated in this letter.
2) the owtside agency name &

3) the investigator name that conducted the investigation of alleged time card fraud @

4) the dates beginning and ending that investigation (after January 22, 2018)"

responsiv ords to this request. The Act doc

Your Request dated S25
Any and all documentation to obtain the total cost of third party investigations regarding the matter of <
2) Maria Galvez leave and ter %o\?
e City does not ha y responsive records to this request Your Request dated 525
Your requests dated 5/23/18 are now closed and your request dated 5/25/18 & nc Any and all documentation to obtaly tal cost of third party investigations regarding the matter of

relates to the documents submitted to the AG for review.

Regards, 2) Maria Galvez - administrai pe and fermination

. Attorney The City does not have ar Y\Nrww records to this request
()Iwu & ()Iwn LLP

Wortham Tower, Suite 600 o, V)
2727 Allen Parkway
Houston, Texas 77019-2133 1 .- N . M .

Phone: 713-533-3800 fhe City x‘-\m@\u\c any responsive records to this request
Fax: (713) 533-3888

Houston | Katy | Angleton Q

<,

22.  Defendants’ failure to investigate the m@x\matter for which they allegedly placed Ms.

Galvez on suspension is further corroborate&gy the fact that Ms. Galvez was never contacted by

@)

an investigator for questioning. @
o \@

23. It was not until March 14, hat Ms. Galvez was finally contacted by Mayor Brawner.

24.  However, Mayor Braw only contacted Ms. Galvez to informed her of new allegations

being made against her. @9

25.  These new all@ons were made after Fire Chief Russell Wilson invaded Ms. Galvez’s
é&,.

privacy by access

messenger. §

personal, confidential messages exchanged via Ms. Galvez’s Facebook

26.  That day, Mayor Brawner informed Ms. Galvez that she would have an opportunity to

respond to the allegations made against her on Friday, March 16, 2018.
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27. At the March 16, 2018 meeting, the only person asking questions was Mayor Brawner,
who initially placed Ms. Galvez on administrative leave, and further hired Chief Wilson whom
Ms. Galvez had raised complaints about before she was placed on leave.

28.  Clearly, Mayor Brawner never intended to have an unbiased third-party investigate the
false allegations made against Ms. Galvez in which it was alleged Ms. Galv%%?ad committed
timesheet fraud. ©\@@

29.  Defendants knew those allegations were frivolous, and for réggﬁ two months following
her suspension, Ms. Galvez heard nothing from the City of Katy @@m Brawner, all while being
on paid administrative leave. . @

30. It was not until after this subsequent invasion @ Galvez’s privacy, the intrusion on
seclusion, that Mayor Brawner finally contacted M@.\@alvez to schedule a meeting.

31. This is not a situation where Ms. G &Voluntarily gave Defendants access to her
Facebook Messenger account nor is this a s&%tion where she logged into Facebook for personal
reasons and forgot to close her accm%%x@%mg her exposed.

32.  Ms. Galvez was required, @d on assigned job duties, to update the Facebook pages for
both the Fire Department ancb@%e of Emergency Management.

33.  Per Facebook m&@ order to have administrative duties and access to update these pages
for the city, the accg@@ave to be linked to her personal page.

34. Defenda@evoked Ms. Galvez’s administrative duties when she placed on administrative
leave. @

35. However, unbeknownst to Ms. Galvez, and never having Ms. Galvez’s consent to do so,

Chief Wilson continued to monitor her personal account.
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36.  Defendants only objective, now that Chief Wilson had read Ms. Galvez’s personal,
confidential Facebook messages and shared them with Mayor Brawner, was to terminate Ms.
Galvez’s employment armed with this new, extremely personal and intimate information.

37. Defendants’ motives in attaining this information was clear, as in Ms. Galvez’s termination
appeal, Defendants not only claimed that Ms. Galvez had violated instructions @Q@ommunicating
with city employees about the non-existent investigation, but they (d @berately included
unnecessary, highly personal messages in the termination appeal pack@@

38.  Defendant selected messages that had nothing to do w1t@s%llegatlon made against Ms.

Galvez. . AN
O

39.  Defendants’ actions in reading Ms. Galvez’s Facébpok messenger messages, using them
as a basis for termination, and then including them in @ termination appeal packet were malicious
and calculated to cause harm. C)@&
40.  In fact, it is clear that Defendants \é‘% seeking the most personal information and their
review of Ms. Galvez’s Facebook m@@ger messages was not just a cursory review, but an in-
dept study of her private life. @

41.  In fact, one message efendants submitted during the termination appeal dated back
to 2013, which clearly i@es that Defendants did not merely come across these messages, but

S0

instead, took delibex@ctions in seeking them out.

42. Defendw@ctions allowed them access to not only conversations Ms. Galvez had related
to her empl@ent, but private conversations she had with family and friends, and conversations

about her personal relationships and health matters.

43.  All conditions precedent to the bringing of this lawsuit have been satisfied and fulfilled.
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Iv.
CAUSE OF ACTION
INVASION OF PRIVACY — INTRUSION ON SECLUSION

44.  Plaintiff brings this suit in her individual capacity.
45.  Defendants intentionally intruded upon Plaintiff’s solitude, seclusion or private affairs and

concerns. %
)

46. Defendants’ invasion was actual, a nonphysical invasion, in@aintiff’ s solitude,

N

seclusion, or private affairs. &@
D

47.  Defendants intrusion would be highly offensive to @@asonable person and was

AN

@

unwarranted, unjustified, and nonconsensual.

Q

N
48. Defendants intrusion resulted in Plaintiff bverely offended, humiliated, and

outraged. o)
$
49.  As a result of Defendants actions, Plaintiff suffered injury and damages, within the

&

Jurisdictional limits of this Court, as@jproximate cause of such the intrusion.

. @@ VIL

USE OF ACTION
42 U.S.C. § 1983 - VIOLATION OF THE FOURTH
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS

50.  Defendant Wilson '@ﬁtionally and maliciously seized and searched Plaintiff’s electronic
communicatiqn@ated in her Facebook messenger account without just cause. Defendant

QO

Brawner il@cted, authorized, consented to, and/or observed this unlawful and malicious.
51. Defe@ had no objectively reasonable basis to believe that Plaintiff’s electronic
communications contained materials related to her employment.

52.  Defendant took intentional and deliberate steps to access Plaintiff’s electronic

communications.
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53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

Plaintiff did not consent to Defendants seizure and search of her electronic
communications.

At all times relevant hereto, Plaintiff had a right clearly established under the Fourth
Amendment to the United States Constitution and enforceable through the Due Process
Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to be free from unreasonable sear& and seizures.
Plaintiff suffered damages, including economic and non—ec@nic injuries as a

consequence of these violations. 0&\©

VIIL {7@

18 U.S.C. § 2707 — VIOLATIONS OF THE STORED<C MUNICATIONS ACT

At all relevant times, the Stored Communication A@ U.S.C. § 2701 et. seq.) was in full

@

force and effect and governed the accessn@)f facilities through which electronic
@

communication service is provided. @&
Defendants knowingly, intentiona@&nd willfully accessed Plaintiff’s Facebook
messenger messages without authiorization and obtained electronic communication that

. BN .
were then being electromc@ored therein.

Defendants are liable fa&?e actions taken by Defendant Wilson and Brawner in access
Plaintiff’s stored c@%ﬂcations,

Plaintiff did n@@nsent to Defendants’ accessing of her stored communications.
Defendant@mns violate 18 U.S.C. § 2701 and give rise to a claim under 18 U.S.C. §
2707©@

Plaintiff suffered damages, including economic and non-economic injuries as a

consequence of these violations.
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IX.
JURY DEMAND

62.  Plaintiff demands trial by jury and has tendered the appropriate fee.

X.
REQUEST FOR DISCLOSURE

63.  Defendants are requested to disclose, within 50 days of service ofﬁfs request, the

@

information and material described in Rule 194.2. C}
XI. & O
DAMAGES LN

9D
64.  Plaintiff seeks all damages allowed under the Texas ar@eral law, including:
a) Plaintiff seeks all actual damages as may 1@ppmpnate such as back pay, front
pay, loss of earning capacity, and Value@’etlrement benefits.

b) Plaintiff seeks compensatory dam. for future pecuniary losses, emotional pain,

suffering, inconvenience, mental”anguish, loss of enjoyment of life, and other

@)

nonpecuniary loses. @
O
c) Plaintiff seeks exe \or punitive damages.

d) Plaintiff seeks @gﬁtional equitable relief as may be appropriate such as
remstateme@t@omotlon and injunctive relief to protect against Defendants harm.
e) Plamtlff@ks pre and post judgment interest at the maximum rate allowed by law.

f) Pl seeks costs including court costs and reasonable expert fees.

O

g@intiff seeks reasonable attorneys’ fees.

WHEREFORE, premises considered, Plaintiff respectfully prays that Defendants be cited
to appear and, that upon a trial on the merits, that all relief requested be awarded to Plaintiff, and

for such other and further relief to which Plaintiff is justly entitled.
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Respectfully submitted,
ROB WILEY, P.C.

exas Bar No. 24051512 @§:
Robert J. Wiley C}
Texas Bar No. 24013750
Board Certified Speciali QP%xas Board of Legal
Specialization, Labor ﬁmployment Law

N

LAW OFFICE O @B WILEY, P.C.
1651 Richmond nue
Houston, Tex 006
Telephone: (7}3) 337-1333
Facsimil 13) 337-1334
kwhe@l@‘@robwﬂey com

@NEYS FOR PLAINTIFF

@

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that all counsel ofrd listed below have been served a true and correct copy of
the foregoing document in aca&%ignce with Tex. R. Civ. Proc. 21a by electronic submission for
filing and service through the(@@c s Online EFiling for Courts on November 5, 2018.

©

Ramoén G. Viada Il @\
Stefanie S. Strayer @\

17 Swallow Tail Court, Suite 100
The Woodlands, Texas 77381

Email: ravv1a&®v1adastraver com /
1msy

raN Xf?ﬁee er 7
exas Bar No. 24051512
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